
 

 

 

 

 

Prosser Memorial Health 

Board of Commissioners 

 

Board Packet 

August 26, 2021 

 

 

 
  



August 26, 2021 Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

   
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
THURSDAY, AUGUST 26, 2021     

6:00 PM, WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 
 AGENDA  

 
COMMISSIONERS:       STAFF: 
Stephen Kenny, Ph.D.       Craig Marks, CEO 
Sharon Dietrich, M.D.       Merry Fuller, CNO/COO 
Glenn Bestebreur       David Rollins, CFO 
Susan Reams        Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 

              Keith Sattler                       Kristi Mellema, CQO  
              Brandon Bowden       Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 
              Neilan McPartland                    Dr. Walburga Martin 
 
          GUESTS: 
          Kurt Broeckelmann, Architect, bcDG 
          Paul Kramer, Project Director, NV5 

Bret Miche, Sr. Project Manager,   
    Graham Construction   

        
           

  I.  CALL TO ORDER 
       A.  Pledge of Allegiance 
 
 II.  PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
III.  APPROVE AGENDA 
        Action Requested – Agenda 
 
IV.  CONSENT AGENDA 
        Action Requested – Consent Agenda 

A. Board of Commissioners Meeting Minutes for July 29, 2021.       
       B.   Payroll and AP Vouchers #159400 through #160034 dated 07-22-21 through 08-19-21 in the amount of 
             $7,254,161.27 
                   
 V.  MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 
       A.  Medical Staff Report and Credentialing       Dr. Martin            
             Action Requested – Advancement from Provisional 
              
             Peter Park, ARNP – Allied Health Professional privileges in Family Medicine effective September 1, 2021 through    
             February 28, 2023. 
 
 
 



August 26, 2021 Board of Commissioners Meeting Agenda  

        B.   New  Appointment 
  Action Requested – New Appointment 
 
 Kelly Simone, MD –Provisional/Locum Tenens Staff with requested privileges in Pediatrics effective  
              September 1, 2021 through February 28, 2022. 
 

Zachary Garland, ARNP – Provisional/Allied Health Professional Staff with requested privileges in Anesthesia  
effective September 1, 2021 through February 28, 2022. 

 
        C.   Reappointment 
               Action Requested – Reappointment 
 

Carolyn O’Connor, MD – Reappointment to the Active Staff with requested privileges in Family Medicine  
effective September 1, 2021 through August 31, 2023. 

 
Joji Kohjima, MD – Reappointment to the Active Staff with requested privileges in Family Medicine/OB effective  
September 1, 2021 through August 31, 2023. 

 
Jared Wolfert, DO – Reappointment to the Locum Tenens Staff with requested privileges in Emergency Medicine  
effective September 1, 2021 through August 31, 2023. 

 
Carlyle Langhorn, MD – Reappointment to the Locum Tenens Staff with requested privileges in Emergency  
Medicine effective September 1, 2021 through August 31, 2023. 

 
 

 VI.   FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
         A.  Review Financial Reports for July 2021 (Attachment O)                                                                                   David  
               Action Requested – Financial Reports 
 
         B.  COVID-19 Financial Plan (Attachment U)                David 
 
         C.  Approve Resolution #1056 – Completion of the Nuclear Medicine Department Remodel Project          Craig 
 Action Requested – Resolution #1056 (Attachment W)     
 
 
VI.   SERVICES 
          A.  Replacement Facility Update 
  1.  Design                      Kurt Broeckelmann 
  2.  Value Engineering                      Paul Kramer                              
  3.  Schedule                      NV5/Graham Construction     
                 
         
 VIII.  QUALITY 
           A.  DOH/CMS Survey                 Kristi  
 
           B.  COVID-19 Update                 David 
 
           C.  Legislative and Political Updates                  Commissioner Bestebreur 
 
           D.  CEO/Operations Report                                                                                                                                        Craig 
 
 
    IX.  ADJOURN                  



 

 

 
PMH 

Board of Commissioners 
Work Plan – FY2021 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
January 
 
 

 

QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve 2021 Strategic Plan 
and 2021 Patient Care Scorecards 

• Sign Financial Disclosure and Conflict 
of Interest Statements 

• Approve 2021 Risk Management and 
Quality Assurance Plans 

• Select and Approve Board Officers 
 
SERVICES: 

• Approve acquisition of two 
replacement ultrasound units 

• Approve acquisition of Virtual 
Desktop Infrastructure 

 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review 2020 Employee Engagement 
Survey Results 

• Review 2020 Medical Staff 
Engagement Survey Results 

 
QUALITY: 

• Review Board Self-Evaluation 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review semi-annual financial 
performance report for PMH Clinics 

 
SERVICES: 
     Replacement Facility Update 

• Design Development 

• Budget 

• Vision 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
February SERVICES: 

• Approve Acquisition of trans 
esophageal echo (TEE) equipment 

• Approve GC/CM 
 

QUALITY: 

• Approve 2021 Corporate Compliance 
Plan 

• Approve 2021 Infection Prevention 
Control Plan 

• Approve 2021 Board Action Plan 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review and Approve 2021 Leadership 
Incentive Compensation Program 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend AHA Governance Conference 
Virtually 
 

QUALITY: 

• Review 2020 Corporate Compliance 
Report  

• Review 2020 Infection Prevention 
Summary 

 
MEDICAL STAFF: 

• Cardiology Update – Nuclear 
Medicine, TEE 

March QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 
 
MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Support Providers’ Day Celebration 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Accept 2020 Audit Report 

• Approve USDA application for new 
facility 

 
SERVICES: 

• Approve Design Development of new 
facility 

• Approve initial budget for new facility 
 
 

PATIENT LOYALTY: 

• Review Patient Engagement Plan 

• Review 2020 Utilization Review 
Performance 

• Approve 2021 Utilization Review Plan 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Employee Performance 
Report 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Presentation of the 2020 Audit 
Report by Auditors 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
SERVICES: 
   Replacement Facility Update 

• Design development 

• USDA Application 

• Budget 
 

April QUALITY: 

• Approve 2021 Community Benefits 
Report 

 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

• Conduct CEO Evaluation 
 
MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 

• Approve Benton City Clinic 
renovations to accommodate 
Dermatology and approve acquisition 
of Dermatology Equipment 

QUALITY: 

• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 

• Review 2020 Community Benefits 
Report 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• PMH Security Update 

• Review 2020 Leadership Performance 
(LEM) 

• Review Employee Engagement Plan 
 

MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review 2020 FPPE/OPPE Summary 

• Review proposed Dermatology 
Program 
 

May EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Support Hospital Week 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHP: 

• PMH Foundation Update 
 
SERVICES: 

• Replacement Facility Update 
 
MEDICAL STAFF 

• Review PMH Clinic productivity 

• Medical Staff Engagement Plan 
 
 

 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
June QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 

• Approve 2020 CAH Annual Review 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Approve SEIU contract 

QUALITY: 

• Report 2020 Q1 Utilization Review 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review PMH Uniform Program 
 

SERVICES: 

• Marketing Update 

• PMH Telehealth Update 
 

July MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend BOC, Medical Staff and 
Leadership Engagement Activity 
 

 

SERVICES: 

• EMS Update 

• Replacement Facility Update 
 
QUALITY: 

• Quality Committee Report 

• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Human Resources Update 

• Retirement Program Update 
 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review Semi-Annual Financial 
Performance Report for PMH Clinics 

• Review HR/Payroll Software (IT) 
 

August EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend end of summer Engagement 
Activity for BOC, Medical Staff, and 
all staff 

• Review Leadership and Exempt Wage 
Scales  

 

No Board Work Session 
 
QUALITY: 

• iVantage Update  
 
 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Banking relationship Selection 
  

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Centralized Scheduling/POS 
Collections Update 

• Review Banking Services  
 

September QUALITY: 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Leadership Development 
Activities 

 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve USDA Loan Agreement 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review Employee Benefit Changes 
 
SERVICES: 
    Replacement Facility update 

• USDA 
 

October  QUALITY: 

• Conduct 2022 Strategic Planning  

• Strategic & Patient Care Score Cards 
 

November FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve Budget and Property Tax 
Request  for County Commissioners 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 

QUALITY: 

• iVantage Update 
 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Review LDIs and status update on key 
Studer initiatives  

 
SERVICES: 

• Review draft 2022 Strategic Plan; 
2022 Marketing and IT Plans; and 
Medical Staff Model/2022 Provider 
Recruitment Plan 

• Replacement Facility Update 
 
 



 

 

Month Goals & Objectives Education 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Review draft 2022 Budget 
 

December QUALITY: 

• Complete Board Self-Evaluations 

• Review/Approve Board Polices 

• Approve the 2022 Environment of 
Care Plan 

 
SERVICES: 

• Approve 2022 Strategic Plan; 2022 
Marketing and IT Plans; and Medical 
Staff Model/2022 Provider 
Recruitment Plan 

 
FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP: 

• Approve 2022 Operating and Capital 
Budgets 

 
EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT: 

• Attend holiday celebration 
 

QUALITY: 

• Review the 2021 Environment of 
Care Plan 
 

 

 



                               2021 -  Strategic Plan Scorecard
Major Goal Areas & Indicators 2021 Goal Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 2021 YTD 2020 Avg 2019 Avg

Patient Loyalty

IP - "Would Recommend" >87.9% 90.0% 90.0% 90.0% 80.6% 74.9% 93.3% 94.4% 93.5% 87.9% 85.1%

ED - "Would Recommend" >81.4% 63.2% 63.2% 63.2% 70.6% 60.8% 85.4% 92.3% 85.6% 81.4% 80.3%

Acute Care - "Would Recommend" >84.1% 85.7% 85.7% 85.7% 72.5% 85.0% 93.8% 90.0% 91.7% 84.1% 78.6%

OB - "Would Recommend" >92.3% 91.7% 91.7% 91.7% 83.3% 95.2% 83.9% 100.0% 94.0% 92.3% 92.2%

Outpatient Surgery - "Would Recommend" >91.0% 71.3% 71.3% 71.3% 100.0% 93.8% 83.3% 97.2% 94.5% 89.8% 91.0%

Clinic - "Would Recommend" >87.3% 71.3% 71.3% 71.3% 74.7% 79.9% 92.9% 90.6% 90.7% 87.3% 87.1%

Outpatient - "Would Recommend" >88.4% 77.4% 77.4% 77.4% 74.7% 79.9% 93.0% 94.9% 92.4% 88.1% 88.4%

Composite Score >86.2% 75.7% 75.7% 75.7% 80.6% 79.7% 89.3% 88.3% 91.1% N/A N/A

Medical Staff Development

Medical Staff Turnover <10% 0% 2% 2% 0% 0% 0% 0% 4.0% 0.2% 0.2%

Prosser Specialty Clinic Visits 1,062              1,051              1,023        1,401        1,301        1,281        1,455        1,199        1,244        954 950

Benton City Clinic Visits 1,005              885                 696           881           801           742           778           724           787           837 958

Prosser RHC Clinic Visits 1,052              1,406              1,149        1,503        1,357        1,398        1,297        1,236        1,335        1226 960

Grandview Clinic Visits 742                 592                 522           621           644           670           789           729           652           589 568

Women's Health Center  629                 604                 636           727           627           653           647           530           632           601 469

*# of Active Medical Staff >51 49 49 49 51 51 51 51 50.14286 45 41

Employee Development

403(B) Participation Rate >55% 99% 97% 97% 99% 99% 98% 98% 98% 46% N/A

Average Recruitment Time (days) <28 24 18 26 23 17 32 21.8 23             32 28

# of Open Positions (Vacancies) <23 25 29 42 12 12 34 49 29             29.4 23

Hours of Overtime - Overtime/Total Hours Worked <4.5% 7.3% 5.2% 5.3% 6.2% 5.5% 5.9% 6.7% 6.0% 5.9% 5.7%

Agency - Cost/Total Labor <8.7% 5.9% 7.4% 6.8% 8.3% 8.9% 7.7% 9.9% 7.8% 7.6% 14.5%

Turnover Rate <0.6% 0.0% 2.4% 0.03% 0.7% 0.0% 1.0% 1.0% 0.7% 0.6% 0.7%

Timely Evaluations >79.6% 61.0% 67.0% 78.0% 85.3% 55.0% 67.8% 65.5% 68.5% 70.2% 79.6%

Education Hours/FTE >2.15 1.14                1.03          1.26          0.99          1.13          1.12          0.33          1.00          1.22 1.55

New Hire (Tenure) < 1 year <10% 0% 1% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0% 0.0% 0%

* Lost Workdays due to On-the-Job Injuries <10.25 0 7 9 4 3.5 45.28 31.12 14.27       10.25 167

Quality

ED Encounters - Left Without Being Seen <0.8% 0.2% 1.0% 0.7% 1.6% 0.4% 2.0% 1.8% 1.1% 0.8% 1%

*Falls with Injury <2 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0.3 2 3

Healthcare Associated Infection Rate per 100 Inpatient Days <0.07% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.29% 0.07%

All-Cause Unplanned Readmissions within 30 Days <2.7% 5.9% 9.2% 11.1% 3.7% 6.3% 3.0% 5.7% 6.4% 3.8% 5.4%

Diabetes Management - Outpatient A1C>9 or missing result <27.61% 22.83% 21.92% 20.51% 19.07% 27.70% 21.70% 14.87% 21.23% 27.61% 30.3%

Services

ED Visits 916                 820                 712           874           1,035        1,133        1,227        1,317        1,017        805 1,016

Inpatient Admissions 86                   112                 89             93             117           118           117           145           113           83 83

OB Deliveries 45                   42                   47             39             46             52             48             70             49             41 37

Surgeries and Endoscopies 137                 100                 133           187           180           183           190           171           163           101 118

Diagnostic Imaging Procedures 2,087              2,628              2,439        3,112        3,336        3,156        3,233        3,067        2,996        2280 1,957

Lab Procedures 12,374            14,626            12,570     14,659     14,800     14,902     14,474     15,174     14,458     11768 11,051

Adjusted Patient Days 1,453              1,644              1,496        1,948        1,871        1,722        1,574        1,653        1,701        1393 1,624

Therapy Visits 1,706              1,333              1,401        1,792        1,520        1,373        1,706        1,423        1,507        1314 1,145

Outpatient Special Procedures Visits 245                 213                 255           256           342           354           397           393           316           247 224

Financial Performance

Net Days in Accounts Receivable 51                   59                   60             62             64             66             59             59             59             63 63.79

*Total Margin 13.47% 11.4% 0.5% 8.7% 8.8% 9.0% 10.1% 8.7% 9.9% 4.5% 5.30%

Net Operating Revenue/FTE 19,448$         16,427$         15,351$   18,366$   19,282$   18,115$   19,821$   18,956$   18,045$   $17,191 $15,794

Labor as % of net Revenue 51.60% 61.10% 56.50% 54.20% 58.40% 57.95% 51.99% 58.88% 57% 61.3% 59.6%

Operating Expense/FTE 16,894$         14,635$         15,385$   16,722$   17,705$   16,728$   15,953$   17,419$   16,364$   $15,891 $15,190

*Days Cash on Hand 156                 169                 152           146           146           147           155           152           152           183 120.39

Commercial % 29.10% 27.40% 29.00% 29.30% 28.40% 27.10% 28.30% 28.10% 28% 29.0% 28.7%

Total Labor Expense/Total Expense 59.00% 68.59% 56.41% 59.48% 63.62% 62.37% 61.73% 63.76% 62% 61.3% 62%

Green at or above Goal 

Yellow within 10% of Goal

Red More than 10% below Goal

*Cumulative Total - goal is year end number



                       2021 -  Patient Care Scorecard
Major Goal Areas & Indicators 2021 Goal Jan Feb March April May June July Aug Sept Oct Nov Dec 2021 YTD 2020 2019

Quality

Left Without Being Seen <0.80% 0.24% 0.98% 0.69% 1.55% 0.44% 2.04% 1.82% 1.19% 0.80% 1.11%

Median Admit Decision Time to ED Departure Time for Admitted Patients <44 min 75 68.5 60 75 51.5 56.5 45.5      62 70 N/A

Median Time from ED Arrival to Departure for Discharged ED Patients <107 min 136 110 118 122 109 112.5 112      117 128 N/A

Venous Thromboembolism Prophylaxis >93.1% 92.9% 86.2% 85.7% 89.4% 95.9% 90.4% 96.1% 91.5% N/A N/A

Exclusive Breast Milk Feeding Patients >44.4% 52.6% 51.3% 56.3% 50.0% 43.8% 47.9% 68.3% 53.5% N/A N/A

All-Cause Unplanned 30 Day Inpatient Readmissions <2.7% 5.9% 9.2% 11.1% 3.7% 6.3% 3.0% 5.7% 6.3% 3.80% 5.40%

Sepsis - Early Management Bundle >84.6% 100.0% NA NA 100.0% 100.0% 100.0% 66.7% 87.5% 72.73% 84.60%

Healthcare Associated Infection Rate per 100 Inpatient Days <0.07% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.29% 0.07%

Diabetes Management - Outpatient A1C>9 or missing result  <27.61% 22.83% 21.92% 20.51% 19.07% 27.69% 21.74% 14.87% 21.23% 27.61% 30.25%

Medication Reconciliation Completed >90% 51% 44% 42% 48% 46% 46% 49% 47% 47.15% N/A

Turnaround time of 30 minutes or less for STAT testing <30 min 42 40 39 35 37 37 40      39 37.5 30

Median Time to ECG < 7 min 8 6.5 7.5 6 8 6 7      7.0 7 7

Surgical Site Infection <0.25% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.00% 0.25% 0.30%

Safe Medication Scanning >92.9% 91.8% 95.0% 93.5% 92.8% 92.8% 90.8% 92.9%      92.8% 98.90% 90%

*Overall Quality Performance Benchmark (iVantage) >48 41            41            41            41            41            41            39                 39            44 48

*Falls with Injury <2 0 0 1 0 0 0 1      2 2 3

Green at or above Goal  (4)

Yellow within 10% of Goal  (2)

Red More than 10% below Goal  (0)



 

 

          BOARD WORK SESSION         JULY 27, 2021                                       WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 

  COMMISSIONERS PRESENT  STAFF PRESENT MEDICAL STAFF                 GUESTS 

• Dr. Steve Kenny 

• Glenn Bestebreur 

• Keith Sattler 

• Sharon Dietrich, M.D. 

• Brandon Bowden 

• Neilan McPartland 

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• Merry Fuller, CNO/COO  

• David Rollins, CFO 

• Shannon Hitchcock, CCO 

• Kristi Mellema, CCQO 

• Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 
 

 • Kurt Broeckelmann, 
Architect, bcDG 

• Paul Kramer, Project 
Director, NV5 

• Adam Trumbour, 
Project Manager, 
NV5 

• Bret Miche, Graham 
Construction 
 

                     AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

  I.  CALL TO ORDER The Meeting was called to order by 
Commissioner Kenny at 6:02 p.m. 

None. None. 

II.  SERVICES    

      A.  Replacement Facility Update 
            1.  Project Cost   
                 Reconciliation/Budget   
 
 
             2.  Design Update 

Bret Miche, Paul Kramer, Adam 
Trumbour and Kurt Broeckelmann 
reviewed the Project Cost 
Reconciliation and Budget. 
 
Kurt Broeckelmann provided a Design 
Update 

None. 
 
 
 
 
None. 

None. 
 
 
 
 
None. 



 

    B.  Dermatology Clinic Update 
                     

Craig Marks provided and update on 
the Dermatology Clinic discussing 
equipment and services. 
 

None. 
 

None. 
 
 

    C.  PMH Naming Rights Shannon Hitchcock presented Prosser 
Memorial Health Foundation’s Naming 
Rights. 
 

None. To be presented at the 
Board Meeting on 7-29-
21. 

    D.  Strategic Plan Update The Administrative Team presented 
the Strategic Plan Update. 
 

None. None. 

    E.  HR Update Bryon Dirkes presented an update of 
the activities in HR. 

None. None. 

III.  ADJOURN    

 There being no further regular business to attend to, Commissioner Kenny adjourned the meeting 8:03 p.m. 

     

 



 

 

 

          BOARD MEETING         July 29, 2021                                    WHITEHEAD CONFERENCE ROOM 

  COMMISSIONERS PRESENT  STAFF PRESENT MEDICAL STAFF                 GUESTS 

• Dr. Steve Kenny 

• Glenn Bestebreur 

• Susan Reams 

• Keith Sattler 

• Sharon Dietrich, M.D. 

• Neilan McPartland 
 

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• Merry Fuller, CNO 

• David Rollins, CFO 

• Kristi Mellema, CQO 

• Kevin Hardiek, CIO 

• Shannon Hitchcock, CCO  

• Bryon Dirkes, CHRO 
 

• Dr. Brian Sollers Neil Taylor 
Dr. Robert Wenger 
Christi Doornink-Osborn 
 
Or should I just say 
unidentified guests?? 

                     AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

  I.  CALL TO ORDER The Meeting was called to order by 
Commissioner Kenny at 6:00 p.m. 

None. None. 

      I.A.  Pledge of Allegiance    

 II.  PUBLIC COMMENT None. None. None. 

III.  APPROVE AGENDA  Commissioner Reams made a 
Motion to approve the July 29, 
2021 Agenda.  The Motion was 
seconded by Commissioner 
Dietrich and passed with 6 in 
favor, 0 opposed and 0 
abstained. 
 

None. 



 

 

 

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

IV.  APPROVE CONSENT AGENDA 
 
        A.  Board of Commissioners 
              Meeting Minutes for  
              June 24, 2021.   
 
        B.  Payroll and AP Vouchers 
              #158777 through 
              #159399 dated 06.17.21 
              through 07.21.21 in the 
              amount of  
              $6,513,470.85; Surplus  
              Items Resolution #001055 

None. Commissioner Sattler made a 
Motion to approve the 
Consent.  The Motion was 
seconded by Commissioner 
Reams and passed with 6 in 
favor, 0 opposed and 0 
abstained.   
 
    

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
    

V.  MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT  DISCUSSION  ACTION  FOLLOW-UP 

      A.  Medical Staff Report and  
            Credentialing 

    

            A.1.  Advancement from     
            Provisional 
 
 

Dr. Sollers presented the following 
providers for Advancement from 
Provisional Status: 
 
Ryan Steed, CRNA – Allied Health 
Professional privileges in Anesthesia 
effective August 1, 2021 through 
January 31, 2023. 
 
Maria Recio Restrepo, MD – 
Telemedicine privileges in Neurology 
effective August 1, 2021 through 
January 31, 2023. 
 

A Motion to approve the 
Advancement from Provisional 
Appointments and requested 
Clinical Privileges that have 
been reviewed and 
recommended by the 
Department Chair, the 
Credentialing Committee and 
Medical Executive Committee 
for the following providers was 
made by Commissioner Reams.  
The Motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Dietrich.  The 
Motion passed with 6 in favor, 
0 opposed, and 0 abstained. 

None. 



 

 

• Ryan Steed, CRNA 

• Maria Recio Restrepo, 
MD 

        A.2.  New Appointments and 
                 Requested Clinical     
                 Privileges 

Dr. Sollers presented the following 
providers for New Appointment: 
 
Nicola Nylander, MD –
Provisional/Active Staff with requested 
privileges in Dermatology effective  
August 1, 2021 through January 31, 
2022. 
 
Chad Williams, MD – 
Provisional/Active Staff with requested 
privileges in Orthopedics effective 
 August 1, 2021 through January 31, 
2022. 
 

A Motion to approve the New 
Appointments that have been 
reviewed and recommended by 
the Department Chair, the 
Credentialing Committee and 
Medical Executive Committee 
for the following providers was 
made by Commissioner Sattler.  
The Motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Bestebreur.  The 
Motion passed with 6 in favor, 
0 opposed, and 0 abstained. 

• Nicola Nyland, MD 

• Chad Williams, MD 

None. 

        A.3.  Reappointments and  
                 Requested Clinical  
                 Privileges  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Dr. Sollers presented the following 
providers for Reappointment: 

 
Karan Bhatti, MD – Reappointment to 
the Active Staff with requested 
privileges in Cardiology effective 
August 1, 2021 through July 31, 2023. 
 
S. Shem Rode, DO – Reappointment to 
the Active Staff with requested 
privileges in Emergency Medicine 
effective August 1, 2021 through July 
31, 2023. 
 

A Motion to approve the  
Reappointments and requested 
Clinical Privileges that have 
been reviewed and 
recommended by the 
Department Chair, the 
Credentialing Committee and 
Medical Executive Committee 
for the following providers as 
revised was made by 
Commissioner Reams.  The 
Motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Bestebreur and 
approved 6 in favor, 0 opposed 
and 0 abstained.   

• Karan Bhatti, MD 

None. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Brian Sollers, DO – Reappointment to 
the Active Staff with requested 
privileges in OB/GYN effective 
August 1, 2021 through July 31, 2023. 
 
Samuel Strebel, MD – Reappointment 
to the Active Staff with requested 
privileges in Orthopedics effective 
August 1, 2021 through July 31, 2023. 
 
Suzanne Staudinger, MD – 
Reappointment to the Active 
Community Staff with requested 
privileges in Family Medicine effective 
August 1, 2021 through July 31, 2023. 
 
Asif Malik, MD – Reappointment to the 
Locum Tenens staff with requested 
privileges in IM/Hospital Medicine 
effective August 1, 2021 through July 
31, 2023. 
 
Marilyn Berko, MD – Reappointment 
to the Locum Tenens Staff with 
requested privileges in Pediatrics 
effective August 1, 2021 through July 
31, 2023. 
 
Jason Redd, PA-C – Reappointment to 
the Allied Health Professional Staff with 
requested privileges in  
Family Medicine effective August 1, 
2021 through July 31, 2023. 

  

• S. Shem Rode, DO 

• Brian Sollers, DO 

• Samuel Strebel, MD 

• Suzanne Staudinger, 
MD 

• Asif Malik, MD 

• Marilyn Berko, MD 

• Jason Redd, PA-C 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

 
 
 



 

 

        A4.  New Privileges Dr. Sollers presented the following 
providers for New Privileges: 
 
Peter Park, ARNP – Allied Health 
Professional with current ARNP Clinic 
Privileges in Family Medicine, requests 
ARNP Hospital Privileges, effective 
August 1, 2021 through January 31, 
2023. 
 

A Motion to approve the New 
Privileges that have been 
reviewed and recommended by 
the Department Chair, the 
Credentialing Committee and 
Medical Executive Committee 
for the following providers as 
revised was made by 
Commissioner Dietrich.  The 
Motion was seconded by 
Commissioner Bestebreur and 
approved 6 in favor, 0 opposed 
and 0 abstained.   
 

 

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

 VI.  FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP    

        A.  Review Financial Reports  
             for June 2021 
             (Attachment V)                   

David Rollins presented the June 2021 
Financials, stating it was a record 
month for revenue at PMH. 

A Motion to accept the 
Financial Reports for June 
2021, was made by 
Commissioner Reams and 
seconded by Commissioner 
Dietrich.  The Motion passed 
with 6 in favor, 0 opposed and 
0 abstained. 

None. 

         B.  Prosser Memorial Health  
              Foundation – Naming Rights 
 

Shannon Hitchcock presented Prosser 
Memorial Health Foundation’s Naming 
Rights 

A Motion to approve naming 
the PMH Education Center 
complex to the Edgar 
Whitehead Education Center 
was made by Commissioner 
Sattler and seconded by 
Commissioner Reams.  The 
Motion passed with 6 in favor, 
0 opposed and 0 abstained. 

None. 



 

 

VII.  SERVICES            
   

   

          A.  Dermatology Clinic  
                Renovations and  
                Equipment (Attachments  
                L, K, M) 
 

Craig Marks presented the 
Dermatology Clinic Renovations and 
Equipment changes. 

A Motion to approve the 
changes to the Dermatology 
Clinic Renovations and 
Equipment proposal was made 
by Commissioner Reams and 
seconded by Commissioner 
Sattler.  The Motion passed 
with 6 in favor, 0 opposed and 
0 abstained. 

None.  

          B.  2021 PMH Strategic Plan  
               Semi-Annual Report 

The Administrative Team presented the 
Semi-Annual PMH Strategic Plan 
Report. 

None. None. 

AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

  VIII.  QUALITY    

A. COVID-19 Update 
 

Merry Fuller presented the update on 
COVID-19. 
 

The Primary Clinics can test for 
COVID-19 and have vaccines 
for further immunizations. 

None. 

           B.  Legislative and Political  
                Updates  

Commissioner Bestebreur shared 
information from the Washington State 
Legislative Session as well as the latest 
developments on the federal front.     

None. None. 

            C.  CEO/Operations Report Craig Marks presented his CEO Report. 
 

None. None. 

IX.  ADJOURN 

          There being no further business, Commissioner Kenney adjourned the Board at 7:05 p.m. 

 



 

JOINT CONFERENCE COMMITTEE                                                      August 18, 2021                                     VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM 

COMMITTEE MEMBERS PRESENT NON-MEMBERS PRESENT 

• Commissioner S. Reams 

• Commissioner S. Dietrich 

• Commissioner S. Kenny 

• C. Marks, CEO 

• Dr. B. Sollers 

• Dr. D. Weaver 
 

• M. Fuller, CNO, COO 

• K. Mellema, CQO 
 

     AGENDA ITEM                                                                                DISCUSSION                                            RECOMMENDATION            FOLLOW-UP 

CALL TO ORDER  Meeting was called to order by Commissioner Reams at 0730. 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES July 2021 minutes were reviewed and approved by the Committee.   For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 

QUALITY 

COVID-19 Update M. Fuller reported that PMH has had a spike in inpatient COVID 
positive patients recently with our highest number being 9.  The 
trend seems to be younger unvaccinated people.  The ED is seeing a 
huge uptick of COVID positive patients as well, but most are being 
discharged home.  We have gone to “red” in our Visitor policy which 
restricts visitors.  We have begun segregating the ED waiting room.  
Non COVID patients are waiting in the lobby and COVID complaints 
are waiting in the ED waiting room.   We have ordered 60 new PAPRs 
and are working on an education plan to role these out to all the 
departments.  

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary.  

DOH/CMS Resurvey K. Mellema reported that PMH had a resurvey on August 3rd.   This 
visit lasted four hours and was only focused on infection 
control.  The surveyors went through the Emergency Department, 
Acute Care, Sterile Processing, and the Specialty Clinic.  From this 
walk through, there were only two findings:   

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary.  



1) Reuse of N95 masks.  Currently, our PPE is in conventional 
status which means we have plenty available for staff and 
reusing the N95 masks when going into a COVID positive 
room is not necessary.  A new N95 needs to be donned 
every time and discarded when patient care is complete. 

2) A written process needs to be developed for the testing and 
logging of the negative air pressure rooms.  This is a process 
that is well understood by staff and we were able to 
demonstrate the testing of a negative air pressure 
room.  However, there is no written policy.  Our Laboratory 
Director, Susan Miklas, is working on incorporating this 
process and the testing log into our current isolation policy. 

 

PATIENT LOYALTY 

Patient Experience 
Results 

M. Fuller reported that all the departments in July are in “green” 
which means they all met their 2021 goal for that month.  The 
overall composite score is 88.3%. 
 

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item.  

MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT 

Medical Staff 
Recruitment 

C. Marks reported that we recently signed two pediatricians, Drs. 
Proctor and Cooks, to join us this fall.  In addition, we recently 
hosted visits with an Internal Medicine Physician and a Family 
Practice Physician. Both candidates would be welcome additions to 
PMH and have been offered contracts.   We are currently working to 
schedule a visit with a GI physician in the Seattle area, but do not 
have any other candidates.  We have spoken with a physiatrist and 
were very impressed with his expertise.  We have invited him for a 
visit and hope to have it scheduled this fall.  We are currently 
working with Dr. Wenger to find ED providers for short term and 
longer term.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 

Medical Staff/Students Dr. Sollers reviewed the policy #345-0005 Students Seeking Clinical 
Experience. PMH has been inundated with medical students recently 
from as many as 15 institutions.  The revised policy has established a 
finite list of institutions that we would allow students from and 
streamlined the process.       

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 
 
 

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT 

End of Summer 
Engagement Activity 
Update 

C. Marks reported that we cancelled the Annual Pool Party for the 
second year in a row. We did, however, want to thank our staff for 
all their hard work this year, so we gave all the full-time employees 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 
 



eight hours of vacation time, part-time employees received four 
hours and per diem staff received a gift card (they do not accrue 
vacation time). 

 

Family Birthplace 
Leadership Transition 

M. Fuller reported that Cindy Raymond is transitioning from 
Department Director to Resource Nurse. This change will allow Cindy 
to focus on staff development and the delivery of quality obstetrical 
care while protecting her time off. Cindy has done a fantastic job 
developing the Family Birthplace program and her team. We are 
excited to give her more time to do the work she loves with the 
team she loves while we continue to experience record-breaking 
growth. Sasha Thomasson has shifted from the Care Transitions 
team to interim Director of the Family Birthplace and supporting 
Acute Care.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 
 
 

Long Term Care Benefit C. Marks reported that beginning January 1, 2022, most workers in 
Washington State will be included in a new State long-term care 
(LTC) program that will be funded through mandatory payroll 
deductions. This new deduction will be calculated at 0.58% on all W2 
income and does not have a ceiling maximum on the tax.  Workers 
who purchase a qualifying LTC policy may apply with the State of 
Washington to permanently opt-out of the State program.  We have 
worked quickly with USI, our insurance broker, to identify an 
insurance product that meets benefit requirements set by 
Washington State. We are making this available (optional) for all 
PMH employees to purchase, in lieu of being permanently opted-
into the State program. 

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 
 
 

SERVICES 

Replacement Facility 
Update 

C. Marks reported that to address the ED department growth, in the 
new hospital, we are working on plans to move Administration into 
the Medical Office Building and expand the ED into the previous 
Administration space.  Administration will be partnered with Human 
Resources for some space economies of scale. These plans are very 
early in the design process but will be reviewed with the Board at 
the August meeting. 
  

For informational 
purposes only. 

No follow up 
necessary. 
 
 

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 

Financial Performance –
July 2021 

C. Marks reported a $6.9 million gross revenue which is exceeding 
budget.  Bottom line for the month is $575,000 and year to date is 
$4.4 million in profit.  USDA looked at this in June and was pleased 
that we were not only meeting budget but exceeding.   

For informational 
purposes only. 

Standing 
agenda item. 



C. Marks reported that yesterday we received word from US Bank 
that our loan is forgiven.  The $6.5 million is ours and will be 
recognized!  We will get formal notification this week.  

ADJOURNMENT & NEXT SCHEDULED MEETING 

Meeting adjourned at 0842 

Next scheduled meeting is September 15, 2021 

 

K. Mellema 8/19/21  

 

 



 

July 26, 2021 Finance Committee  

 

 

 

 

 

 

FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING 
MONDAY – AUGUST 23, 2021    

7:00 a.m. – VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM 
AGENDA 

 MEMBERS:          STAFF: 
 Keith Sattler         Craig Marks 
 Neilan McPartland        David Rollins  
 Brandon Bowden        Stephanie Titus 
                   
 CALL TO ORDER 
 
         I.   APPROVE MINUTES 

Action Requested – July 26, 2021 Minutes 

       II.    FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP 
 A.  Review Financials – July 2021 (Attachment O)                                          David 
                    Action Requested – July 2021 Financial Statements 
 
               B. Review Accounts Receivable and Cash Goal                         Stephanie  
  
              C.  COVID-19 Financial Projection Plan (Attachment U)                                                David 
   
              D.  Vouchers List                                                                                                                                                 
                     Action Requested – Vouchers List - Payroll and AP Vouchers #159400 through                David 
                     #160034 dated 07-22-21 through 08-19-21 in the amount of $7,254,161.27 
 
              E.  Resolution #1056 (Attachment W) - Completion of the Nuclear Medicine Remodel                   David  
                    Action Requested – Resolution #1056           
   
        III.  ADJOURN 

 

 



 

 

 

            FINANCE COMMITTEE MEETING July 26, 2021                                    VINEYARD CONFERENCE ROOM 

  COMMISSIONERS PRESENT  STAFF PRESENT                   GUESTS 

• Keith Sattler 

• Neilan McPartland 

• Brandon Bowden 

• Craig Marks, CEO 

• David Rollins, CFO 

• Stephanie Titus, Director of Finance 
Operations 
 

  

                     AGENDA DISCUSSION ACTION FOLLOW-UP 

  I.  CALL TO ORDER Keith Sattler called the meeting to 
order at 7:11 a.m.  

  

II.   APPROVE MINUTES  A motion to approve the 
Finance Committee Meeting 
minutes for June 21, 2021 as 
presented was made by Neilan 
McPartland.  The motion was 
seconded by Keith Sattler and 
approved.   

None. 

III.  FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP  
  
       A.  Review Financials – June  
             2021 (Attachment V) 

David Rollins presented the Financials 
for June 2021.  Net income was 
$1,405,043 for June on a record 
$17,757,288 gross charges which was 
20% greater than budget.  YTD Net 
Income is $3,812,354 or 79% greater 
than budget.  YTD gross charges were 

A motion to recommend 
acceptance of the June 2021  
Financial Statements as 
presented to the PMH Board 
of Commissioners was made 
by Brandon Bowden.  The 
motion was seconded by  

None. 



 

 

14% greater than budget and expenses 
were 1% greater than budget. 

Neilan McPartland and 
approved.   

      B.  Review Accounts Receivable  
            and Cash Goal  
 

Stephanie Titus presented AR & Cash 
Goals. June Cash Goal was $1,484,935 
driven by record collections of 
$7,037,209 which exceeded goal of 
$6,897,282.  Net days AR dropped to 59 
and days of cash on hand increased to 
155 days.  

None. None. 

     C.  COVID-19 Financial 
           Projection Plan (Attachment  
           Y) 

No change from prior month although 
PMH received $488,000 in June 2021 
from HHS.   

None. None. 

     D.  Voucher Lists  
           Payroll and AP Vouchers 
           #158777 through #159399  
           Dated 06-17-21 through 07- 
           21-21 in the amount of  
           $6,513,470.85 

David Rollins presented the Payroll and 
AP Vouchers. 

A motion to recommend 
approval of the Voucher Lists 
#158777 through #159399 
dated 06-17-21 through 07-
21-21 in the amount of 
$6,513,470.85  was made by 
Neilan McPartland, seconded 
by Brandon Bowden and 
approved.    

None. 

    E.  Surplus Item Resolution #1055  
 

David Rollins presented the Surplus 
Item Resolution #1055. 

A motion to recommend 
approval of Surplus Item 
Resolution #1055 was made 
by Neilan McPartland and 
seconded by Brandon Bowden 
and approved. 

None. 

III.  ADJOURN       

Having declared no further business, the meeting was adjourned at 7:55 a.m. 

 



MEMORANDUM

TO: BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
PROSSER MEMORIAL HEALTH

FROM: CRAIG J. MARKS, CEO

DATE: AUGUST 2021

RE: CEO REPORT

SERVICES

1. Replacement Facility Update
We've been so busy at Prosser Memorial Health the last couple of months that i t  can be

challenging to focus on our replacement facility, and yet we must. Our recent volume surges
demonstrate very clearly our need for a new facility which have also caused us to  take a new
look at several areas in the new facility. While we have been distracted by our increased
volumes, we continue to aggressively pursue plans for our new facility as captured in the
Owner’s Representative (NVS) Progress Report for August (Attachment A); minutes from our
last Project Team Meeting (Attachment B); and the project schedule for the next four months
(Attachment C). The current project initiatives are divided into three main areas: design, USDA,
and budget. As i t  relates to  design, when we originally designed the hospital, we included plans
for growth. When we did this, we were expecting significant growth 5 to  10 years after the new
facility was open, not several years before i t  is open. No one saw the significant volume
increases we are currently experiencing coming this fast, but our plan was designed to  be able
to deal with it. While some of  the growth is COVID-19 related, which will dissipate (hopefully!),
not all of it  will.

As a result, we have reviewed all the volume growth with our architect (bcDG) and our
biggest concern revolves around the Emergency Department (ED), Family Birthplace (FBP) and
observation patients. In all three areas, we have seen significant volume increases which are
challenging our current facility capacity to  the maximum. To address the ED growth, in the new
hospital, we are working on plans to  move Administration into the Medical Office Building
(MOB) and expand the ED into the previous Administration space (Attachment D).
Administration will be partnered with Human Resources for economies of  scale. These plans are
early in the design process but will be reviewed with the Board at their August meeting. This
will reduce our ability to  grow our Specialty Clinic in this building but will accommodate our
current providers in addition to  two additional specialists (e.g., endocrinology, neurology) in the
future. It is important to  remember, that we will also have space for a pulmonologist and
oncologist in the MOB. The increase in FBP volumes was addressed in  the original plans with a
unit that can add rooms down the hallway as volumes grow, in addition to the six LDRPS (we
currently have four) and two triage (observation) rooms. Our first defense with the growing
observation patient volume is the fact that all rooms are private, enabling us to  use every bed



regardless o f  a patient's illness, sex, etc. Secondarily, we  wil l  have two observation/triage beds
in  t he  FBP and we hope to have one/two additional observation/treatment beds i n  t he
redesigned ED. In addition to the Board, these proposed changes will be discussed soon with
the impacted departments for their needed feedback.

As i t  relates to our pursuit of funding from the USDA for this project, the news is good. We
met with USDA representatives last week and provided answers to any questions they still had
regarding our application. The good news is that we have satisfactorily answered their
questions and they are excited about our project, and plan to  take our application to  their
offices in Washington D.C. this week. They also indicated that they expect Washington D.C. to
decide on our application by the end of  August, several weeks ahead of  our original plan. The
only questions we cannot answer are when we’ll receive forgiveness for our $6.35 million loan
from the Small Business Administration (SBA) under the Payroll Protection Program (PPP) and
when we’ll receive a Certificate of Need (CON) from the Department of  Health. We continue to
reach out to  the SBA on a regular basis, but they have given no indication as t o  when we  can
expect a decision. As it relates to  the CON, the DOH has indicated that they will decide by
November 4th. In the meantime, we plan to  continue our legal appeal process regarding their
decision that we need a CON for a replacement hospital in an effort to  keep the pressure on
them to expedite their decision-making process. The timing of these decisions will not impact
the USDA decision as they have indicated that these two items will be conditions of receiving
USDA funds in  2024, but  not  unt i l  then.

The final project area we are working on is related to the overall project budget, which was
shared with the Board last month (Attachment E). The current project budget is based on 50%
construction documents, and the next budget check will come at 95% construction documents
(November/December). While we are not pleased with the current budget, much work
continues improving it  through value engineering and shortening the construction schedule.
The current progress on value engineering (Attachment F) and the schedule (Attachment G)
will be reviewed with the Board at the August Board Meeting. This review will include a
preliminary 4D presentation taking us through the major phases of the construction process. In
the meantime, we continue to monitor the market for inflation and plan to  bid the project in
January 2022. Unfortunately, we will not know the true cost of the project until we bid the
project. As we previously discussed, i f  inflation continues, we may need to  ask the USDA for
additional funds, but we will cross that bridge i f  necessary. It should be noted that all current
and future USDA projects may also be negatively affected by inflation and need additional
funds. I f  the USDA does not provide the funds, many projects may be shut down across the
country.

2. Centralized Scheduling Update
Due in part to rapid growth over the last few years, the hospital has struggled with timely

scheduling for Outpatient tests and procedures as well as providing information to  the patient
about out-of—pocket expenses. This has resulted in frustrated patients and providers in
completing the tests and when the patient receives the final bill detailing patient responsibility,
sticker shock related to deductibles, and co-insurance are common. These issues have been a
major source of patient dissatisfaction. As of  August 15‘, PMH implemented Central—Wide
Outpatient Scheduling (CWS) to  include Diagnostic Imaging, Respiratory Therapy, and



Outpatient Special Procedures (OSP). CWS not only streamlines the scheduling of patients for
most outpatient testing and procedures, but i t  includes the pre-registration of patients,
insurance verification, providing estimates of  patient responsibility after insurance (especially
applicable in Diagnostic Imaging), the initial ask of payments due, and financial assistance
options when applicable. This team also provides assistance with activating MyChart for
anyone not already utilizing this valuable tool.

Next up for Patient Registration is the implementation of a new centralized Call Center to
answer all incoming calls for the clinics for appointments and to complete the steps of pre-
registration along with assistance in activating MyChart for new users. This next step wi l l
increase patient access, improve clinic efficiency, and greatly improve patient satisfaction by
ensuring that a live Patient Registration Representative will not only answer their call, but will
be able to  schedule the patient with any provider in any clinic, and pre-register them at  the
same time. This will occur during the 4th quarter of  2021.

3 .  Communi ty  Support
Throughout the pandemic one thing that has not changed is our support for our community

and their support of us. An example of  this was our recent support of a youth baseball team
(Attachment H) in Prosser. Our support of  our youth has, and will, continue to  be strong. This
past week we sponsored the Yakima Valley Youth Livestock Auction in Grandview. In addition to
sponsoring the event, we also purchased a hog and steer (Reserve Grand Champion) t o
demonstrate our support of our youth learning about business, accountability, and hard work
through raising an animal and selling i t  a t  an auction. Congratulations to  all t he  area you th  tha t
participated in this event! Finally, we continue to  support our local restaurants by using them
for  special events. The favor was also returned last week when Jade's made a special delivery t o
PMH of treats for our staff in lieu of the pool party. A big thank you to Jade’s and all the local
businesses that have continued to  support us throughout the pandemic.

MEDICAL STAFF DEVELOPMENT

1. Medical Staff Recruitment
We continue to  be successful with Medical Staff Recruitment as we recently signed two

pediatricians, Drs. Proctor and Cooks, to  join us this fall. Both candidates were well liked by
everyone at PMH and we look forward to  theirjoining our team. Welcome! In addition, we
recently hosted visits with an Internal Medicine Physician and a Family Practice Physician. Both
candidates would be welcome additions to  PMH and have been offered contracts. We
anticipate t hem deciding within the next mon th  and joining us before the end o f  t he  year. In
addition, we  recently assisted Dr. Derek Weaver i n  his recruitment o f  a Family Practice
Physician to  join his group. This physician is planning to  decide in the next month or two and
would join Dr. Weaver next summer after he  completes his residency. Our biggest recruitment
challenge continues to  be gastroenterology (GI). We had a visit scheduled with a GI physician
from Indiana, but he recently notified us that he is planning to  stay in Indiana. We are currently
working to  schedule a visit with a GI physician in the Seattle area, but do not have any other
candidates. I f  you recall, we experienced the same challenge with ENT, but our patience paid



off when Dr. Coral Tieu joined us, and we couldn't be more pleased! The final specialties we are
working on include Emergency Medicine and Physiatry (Pain Medicine). As our Emergency
Department volumes continue to  grow, we have begun to look for immediate and long-term
help. We have several candidates interested in PMH, which we will be vetting in the coming
months. Finally, we continue to  passively search for a Pain Medicine Provider. Several months
ago, we interviewed an excellent provider that turned down our offer because his wife wanted
to live in California. He did recommend our opportunity t o  a friend, a physiatrist in California.
We conducted a phone interview with this physician this week and were very impressed with
his expertise, personality, and love of rural America. We have invited him for a visit and hope to
have it scheduled this fall. There is a tremendous amount of work that goes into this
recruitment process and we  would no t  be as successful as we are without  the support o f  Christi
Doornink-Osborne and Annie Tiemersma, the newest addit ion t o  our  team. Thank you,  Christi
and Annie!

2. Medical Staff Quarterly Report
The Medical Staff continued t o  be very active during the  second quarter of  2021 i n  addi t ion

to dealing with the largest volumes we have ever experienced at PMH (Attachment l).
Specifically, the Medical Staff has worked on several COVlD—19 related issues; volume changes
throughout the hospital; the development of revised Medical Staff Bylaws and Rules and
Regulations; and their ongoing review and improvement of the quality of care provided at PMH.
Our Medical Staff continues to  support our Mission, Vision and Values and is helping lead us to
become a top CAH in the country.

3. Medical Staff - Students
Over the past f ive years, PMH has become a highly sought-after organization for  students to

receive training. While this speaks to the high quality providers PMH has and it can assist in the
recruitment process, we have reached a point where we are becoming overwhelmed with the
number of students that want to train here. We are a relatively small organization and must
protect our providers and staff, and the limited resources we have. For this reason, Lynn Smith
and the Medical Executive Committee developed and approved a revised Student Clinical
Experience Policy (Attachment J). PMH will continue to  support students training at PMH but
will begin to  limit the number that we accept each year and reduce the number of schools with
which we work. In the coming years we will monitor how well this policy is working and
adjustment as necessary.

EMPLOYEE DEVELOPMENT

1. Employee Engagement
The employee newsletter, The Pulse, highlights some of  the activities and recognitions that

were held throughout the  month ofJuly including t he  employee car wash and Medical Staff
Summer Social (Attachment K). The newsletter also introduces the newest members of our
team. Just when our  summer was getting intense (and hot ! )  we began to  experience an
increase in  COVID-19 cases in  our community. As a result, and in  an effort t o  protect ou r  team,



we cancelled the Annual Pool Party for  the second year in  a row.  We  did, however, wan t  t o
thank our staff for all their hard work this year, so we gave all the full-time employees eight
hours of vacation time, part-time employees received four hours and per diem staff received a
gift card (they do not accrue vacation time) (Attachment L). It is my hope that our staff will use
this extra vacation t ime  t o  relax (you all deserve it!) and enjoy your families. Fall wil l  soon be
here, and we will begin to  plan for our fall engagement activities, assuming we get over this
spike in  COVlD-19 cases.

2 .  Washington State Long-Term Care Program
BeginningJanuary 1, 2022, most workers in  Washington State wi l l  be  included in a new  State

long—term care (LTC) program that will be funded through mandatory payroll deductions. This
new deduction will be calculated at .58% on all W2 income and does not have a ceiling
maximum on the  tax. Workers who  purchase a qualifying LTC policy may apply wi th t he  State
of Washington to permanently opt-out ofthe State program.

.We  have worked with USI, our insurance broker, to  identify an insurance product that meets
benefit requirements set by  Washington State. We are making this available (optional) for  all
PMH employees t o  purchase, in  lieu of being permanently opted—into the  State program. PMH
will not  fund any port ion o f  t he  employee's premium.

One key consideration that employees should be aware of is that the state program does not
have a maximum deduction amount on  W2 earnings. This means that  higher-earning
employees and providers may benefit from purchasing this product versus having Washington
State tax all W2 earnings at 58%. For some wage earners, the personal insurance product that
PMH is offering could be less expensive. If  selected, PMH employees who  submit a qualified
State—approved exemption to  PMH by October 1, 2021, the payroll tax will not begin on
1/1/2022.

Appmeaistout Pm paiicybefom Deductions begin. Emmi waif-u-

’. ‘diflfltlhddin "‘15 m Wanna!” Mahala-mum
dc, ‘ "I . mama-mm: mm. matures.

See the  attached document for  insurance policy details (Attachment M) .  Education sessions wi l l
be conducted with staff by USI and our HR staff soon.

3. Family Birthplace Leadership
Although the faces are not changing, the roles and responsibilities for the Family Birthplace

leadership are evolving. Cindy Raymond is transitioning from Department Director to Resource
Nurse. This change will allow Cindy to focus on staff development and the delivery of quality
obstetrical care while protecting her time off. Cindy has done a fantasticjob developing the
Family Birthplace program and her team. We are excited to  give her more time to do the work
she loves with the team she loves while we continue to  experience record-breaking growth.
Sasha Thomasson has shifted from the Care Transitions team to interim Director of the Family
Birthplace and supporting Acute Care. Sasha has demonstrated excellence in  nursing and



leadership both as a night shift House Supervisor and part of the Care Transition team. Her
experience, ingenuity, and calm under pressure will serve us well during this transition.

4. Leadership and Exempt Wage Scale Review
Prior to  the completion of  the Annual Performance Evaluations for Leadership and Exempt

staff i n  March 2021, the Leadership and Exempt Staff Wage Scales were reviewed for
competitiveness against available market—based compensation data. The two primary data
sources used in the analysis were t he  Northwest Health Care Compensation Survey prepared by
Mil l iman and Executive Compensation and Benefits Survey for Hospitals & Health Systems
prepared by Pearl Meyer. Prosser Memorial pay rates were compared to  the available market
data, focusing on ensuring tha t  PMH wage ranges were comparable to  t he  comparisons and
that jobs were placed on the correct corresponding grades to  ensure market competitiveness.

As a result of the market review, twenty-six (26) jobs were re—graded to  ensure
competitiveness with changes in the labor market. The adjustments to  the jobs did not reflect
increases to  incumbent’s rates of pay in impacted positions. Rather, the changes to the
positions grade increased the range minimum and maximum of the scale, resulting in the ability
to  advance to  a higher rate of pay, based on  future performance-based mer i t  increases.
Changes to  the pay grades were communicated to the Leaders and Exempt staff in those
impacted roles at the time of  their performance evaluation to ensure their knowledge of  their
new pay grade. PMH intends t o  follow this same process in 2022. See the attached copy of the
2021 Leadership and Exempt Wage Scale (Attachment N).

FINANCIAL STEWARDSHIP

1. Financial Performance — July
For the  first t ime in five months, we d id no t  set a record for  gross revenue for  PM H, but  we

did experience our second highest month ever, which is outstanding (Attachment 0). Our
patient volume continues t o  drive this increase in revenue, w i th  just about every hospital
department and clinic exceeding their budgeted volumes. As a result, our gross revenue was
$16.89 million and $3.36 million (25%) better than budget. Despite our deductions from
revenue being higher than expected (34% compared to  a revenue increase o f  25%), our  net
revenue o f  $6.6 million was $747,157 (13%) better than budget. Our expenses were 8% higher
than budget but can be explained with our increased volumes and revenue. As a result, we
experienced an operating income o f  $535,668 compared to  our budgeted net  income $228,906
for July. After adding in non-operating income, our bottom line or net income for July was
$575,021 compared to  our budget of $259,099.

As a result of our strong monthly financial performance, our year-to—date financial
performance is equally strong and impressive. With our strong revenue (16% over budget) and
controlled expenses (2% over budget), our year-to-date net income is $4.387 million compared
to  our budget of $2.389 million, or a positive 84% variance. This results in a total margin of
10.0% compared to our Financial Stewardship Pillar goal of 6.0%. Our strong income statement
performance has enabled us to  have a strong cash flow despite spending $4.3 million on capital
items including our new hospital expenses. Our balance sheet continues to  be strong with over



$23 million in cash. Our days in net accounts receivable remains the biggest opportunity for
improvement in our financial statement, but i t  is improving. Overall, our key financial
indicators and performance remain strong.

2 .  PMH Banking Services Review
PMH has spoken with several banks about their commercial banking services as outlined in

t he  2021 Board Work Plan. All of  t hem have indicated that moving our accounts and potential
lending to  them would generate additional discounts. Due to the expected issuance of  upwards
of $10 million in loans and leases related to  the new hospital as part of the USDA loan package,
PMH delayed making a final decision on selecting a commercial banking partner. USDA is now
recommending that they act as the only lender in the financing of the new hospital and that the
hospital doesn't need a guaranteed lender for approximately $6 million in revenue bonds and
only needs a commercial lender for  the  $3.5 mil l ion in  budgeted equipment operating leases.
We are awaiting on confirmation from USDA that this loan package structure will be approved;
however, in the meantime we are reissuing our bank RFP to a select group of  five banks that
have a significant presence in our community  o r  region and have substantial technological
capabilities to  meet our needs. This group includes US Bank, Banner Bank, Key Bank, Bank o f
America, and Wells Fargo. We anticipate having a final selection for the Finance Committee to
discuss a t  the  October Finance Committee meeting.

3.  PMH Foundation Update
We are still in the quiet phase of our Capital Campaign for our new hospital. We are meeting

with potential large donors who were interviewed during the feasibility study. To date we have
made presentations totaling $3.9 million and we have received $1,000,000 in pledge form
commitments. We anticipate moving into the public phase of the campaign once we receive
approval from the USDA on our loan application.

The Donor Appreciation event for  ou r  internal donors (employees, providers, and Board
members) on September 15 has been postponed until June 2022 due to  a COVlD-19 spike and
staffing issues.

The Foundation has $15,000 in sponsorships confirmed for  the Wine Country Classic Golf
Tournament that will be held Friday, September 10th starting at 9:00 am.  at Black Rock Creek
Golf Course. You can register your team on the Foundation website: Book Online |
t foundat ion (prosserhealth.foundation) or contact Shannon or Annie.

QUALITY

1. COVlD-19 Update
What a difference a month makes as we have seen a significant increase in active COVID—19

cases at PMH and throughout the area. We reached our highest inpatient COVlD—19 census at 9
this past week and our Emergency Department and clinics have also seen dramatic increases,
presumably the Delta Variant, but we have no way to  determine that. This increase has caused
us to  stop accepting swing bed (SNF) patients because we may need the beds. We have also



discontinued allowing visitors into PMH except in special circumstances (e.g., children, end-of-
life). Our COVlD-19 Task Force is once again meeting weekly and monitoring our COVlD-19
response. We also ordered and received both Pfizer and Moderna vaccines and are making
plans on how best to  distribute them including public vaccination clinics and through our  clinics.
We are also planning to  expand our COVID-19 testing capabilities by distributing free home
COVID—19 testing kits. This will help relieve the pressure on our clinic labs and the hospital lab
and will be paid for by our COVlD-19 relief funds.

The biggest COVlD-19 update is the fact that Governor Inslee mandated COVlD-19
vaccinations for all health care workers in the State of Washington by October 18th, 2021
(Attachment P). Failure to comply with his mandate by employees will result in the loss of  their
job and organizations that do not comply with the mandate can lose their license to operate.
There are only two exemptions outlined in the mandate; medical and religious (Attachment (1
developed by PMH legal counsel); and it  is our understanding that while we decide who  gets
exemptions, i t  should be difficult. We have begun to  distribute this information to  our staff, and
today received a FAQ (Frequently Asked Questions) memo from the Department of Health

regarding the mandate (Attachment R). At the present time we have 128 staff (employees,
Medical Staff, contract staff) that have not met the mandate requirements (Attachment 5). We
continue to  promote vaccinations to all staff, however,  several have indicated they  w i l l  not  do
it, which could leave us severely short-staffed when we need our staff the most. WSHA recently
developed a calendar showing the timeline for compliance with the mandate (Attachment T).
We will stay vigilant with our staff and this timeline, and we remain optimistic that most staff
will comply with the mandate. Staff may also apply for an exemption, which we will deal with as
they come in (Five Administrative Team Members including a member of the Medical Staff). I
am very proud of our Medical Staff vaccination rate and their willingness to help educate our
staff about vaccinations. We will continue to  report our progress but will not know our success
rate until October 5th. Stay tuned

2. COVlD-19 Financial Plan
In June, we  received an additional $488,268 in  COVlD-19 Relief Funds earmarked fo r  Critical

Access Hospitals and Rural Health Clinics. We did not receive any additional funds in July
(Attachment U). The big news is wejust learned that our $6.35 million SBA PPP loan has been
fully forgiven (Attachment V)!!! This income will show up on our August income statement and
is the news the USDA has been waiting to hear. I would like to  thank Stephanie Titus for all the
work she did on this critical project. Thank you, Stephanie! With this forgiveness we currently
have $3,046,379 of COVlD-19 Relief funds remaining, which will be returned i f  we do not  use
them by the end of  the pandemic. lam very pleased with how well PMH performed throughout
the pandemic as we took advantage of the appropriate relief programs and still have funds left
i f  we were t o  face a crisis.

3. DOH/CMS Survey Updates
On June 15th, we had a DOH/CMS survey which lasted three ful l  days and resulted i n  five

deficiencies. of t he  f ive deficiencies, two of  t hem fel l  under Infection Control. Due to t he
deficiencies falling under Infection Control amidst the COVlD-19 pandemic, a re-survey



occurred on August 3'“. This visit lasted four hours and was only focused on infection
control. The surveyors went through the Emergency Department, Acute Care, Sterile
Processing, and the Specialty Clinic. From this walk through, there were only two findings:

1) Reuse of N95 masks. Currently, our PPE is in conventional status which means we have
plenty available for staff and reusing the N95 masks when going into a Covid positive
room is not necessary. A new N95 needs to  be donned every time and discarded when
patient care is complete.

2) A written process needs to  be developed for the testing and logging of the negative air
pressure rooms. This is a process that is well understood by staff and we were able to
demonstrate t he  testing of a negative air pressure room.  However, there is no  wr i t ten
policy. Our Laboratory Director, Susan Miklas, is working on incorporating this process
and the testing log into our current isolation policy.

Overall, the surveyors were pleased with this visit and how quickly we moved on correcting
the five original deficiencies. A new report will be generated for the August 3rd visit, of which a
new Plan of Correction will need to be created for the two deficiencies noted.

4. August Board Meeting
As outlined in the 2021 PMH Board Work Plan, we are not conducting a Board Work Session

in August. The August Board Meeting will primarily be used for informational items (e.g.,
Replacement Facility Update, COVlD-19 Financial Plan, DOH/CMS Survey, COVID-19 Update and
one non-routine action i tem. This action item is t o  approve Board Resolution 1056 (At tachment
W) which is to release retained funds to  the contractors, Booth and Sons Construction, for the
completion of  the nuclear medicine project.

If  you have any questions regarding this report, or other Hospital activities, please contact me
at (269) 214-8185 (cell), (509) 786-6695 (office), or stop by and see me at the Hospital.
















































































































































































































	Board  Meeting Agenda - 8.26.21
	BOC Work Plan FY2021
	Strategic Plan Scorecard
	Patient Care Scorecard
	Board Work Session Minutes - 7.27.21
	Board Minutes - 7.29.21
	JCC Minutes
	Finance Committee Agenda 8.23.21
	Finance Committee Minutes - 7.26.21
	CEO Memo - August 2021
	Att A - Replacement Hospital August Progress Report
	Att B - Replacement Hosital Meeting Minutes
	Att C - Replacement Hospital Calendar
	Att D - Replacement Hospital Floorplan
	Att E - Replacement Hospital Progress Report
	Att F - Replacement Hospital Value Engineering Log
	Att G - Replacement Hospital Schedule
	Att H - Community Support
	Att I - Medical Staff Committees Report
	Att J - Student Clinical Experience Policy
	Att K - The Pulse Newsletter
	Att L - Thank You to Staff Award
	Att M - Long Term Care Insurance Policy
	Att N - Leadership and Exempt Wage Scale
	Att O - Financials - July
	Att P - COVID Vaccination Mandate
	Att Q - COVID Vaccination Exemptions
	Att R - COVID Vaccination Requirements
	Att S - PMH COVID Vaccination Rate
	Att T - Vaccination Timeline
	Att U - COVID Financial Plan Funds
	Att V - PPP Foregiveness Notice
	Att W - Resolution #1056

